
ARGYLL AND BUTE COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP 
 

 
3 November 2006 

 
 

 
A meeting of the ARGYLL AND BUTE COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP will be held in 
the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD on FRIDAY, 10 NOVEMBER 2006 at 
11:00 AM. 
 

Coffee will be available from 10.45 am 
 

AGENDA 
 

Please note that Presentations will be strictly limited to 10 minute duration 
 
 1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES 

 
 2. MINUTES 
  Argyll and Bute Community Planning Partnership 7 July 2006 (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 3. MATTERS ARISING 

 
 4. MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE UPDATE 
  Verbal Report by Andrew Campbell  

 
 5. COMMUNITY PLANNING ISSUES 

 
  (a)  Update on CPP Priorities  
   • Health and Wellbeing Group (Elaine Garman) (Pages 5 – 6) 

• Argyll and the Islands Economic Forum (Pages 7 – 8) 
• Dunbartonshire Economic Forum – no update 
• Housing and Communities – no update (next meeting in December 2006) 
• Update on Bute and Cowal Local Community Planning Pilot 

 
  (b)  Initiative at the Edge - Annual Report from the 3 Islands (Hugh Donaldson) 

(Pages 9 - 30) 
 

 6. THE COMMUNITY PLAN PROPOSAL FOR 2007 (EILEEN WILSON) 
 

 7. STRATHCLYDE FIRE AND RESCUE 
  10 Minute Presentation on the Organisation’s new role and function – John Ironside  

 
 8. ARGYLL AND THE ISLANDS ENTERPRISE STRATEGY 
  10 Minute Presentation and 10 Minute Question and Answer Session – Ken 

Mactaggart  
 

 9. SCOTTISH WATER'S INVESTMENT PLAN FOR WATER AND SEWERAGE 
  10 Minute Presentation – Mike Firth (Ref Minutes 7 July 06)  

 
 

Public Document Pack



 10. FIX DATES FOR FUTURE MEETINGS - SUGGESTED DATES 
  • Friday 2 March 2007 

• Friday 6 July 2007 
• Friday 9 November 2007  

 
 A buffet lunch will be available from 12.45 pm in the Members’ Room, followed at 2.00 pm 

by a performance of the 45 minute play “Jackie’s Story” to raise awareness of the 
Domestic Abuse Strategy. 

 
(Pamela MacDonald and Jay Stewart of Women’s Aid will be in attendance to answer any 

questions following the performance) 
 

(Ref CPP Management Committee minutes of 19 April 2006)  
 

  
 
  
  
 
  
 
 



1

ARGYLL  AND  BUTE  COMMUNITY PLANNING  PARTNERSHIP 
MINUTES of MEETING held in the COUNCIL CHAMBERS, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD 

on FRIDAY, 7th JULY 2006 
Present: 
Councillor Robin Banks (Vice Chair) 
Mike Firth, Scottish Water 
Craig Jackson, Scottish Water 
Julian Hankinson, Association of Argyll and Bute 
Community Councils 
Jim Clinton, Bute Community  Links Council of 
Voluntary Service 
Patricia Logan, Argyll and Bute Volunteer Centre 
Jim McCrossan, Argyll and Bute Council 
Erik Jespersen, Argyll and Bute CHP 
David Fulton, Job Centre Plus 
Anne Clark, Islay and Jura Council of Voluntary 
Service

Sharon Hoverty, Islay and Jura Council of Voluntary 
Service
Nigel Stewart, Argyll and Bute Council 
David Dowie, Communities Scotland 
Morven Short, Dunbritton Housing Association 
Alan Milstead, Argyll and the Islands Enterprise 
Keith Miller, Forestry Commission Scotland 
Andrew Campbell, Scottish Natural Heritage 
Harry Miller, Strathclyde Police 
Marlene Baillie, Strathclyde Police 
Geoff Calvert, Strathclyde Fire and Rescue 
James McLellan, Argyll and Bute Council 
Brian Barker, Argyll and Bute Council

In Attendance:  Eileen Wilson, Argyll and Bute Council
Jim Johnstone, IBP Strategy and Research 

Apologies: 
Allan Macaskill, Argyll and Bute Council 
Bill Dalrymple, Loch Lomond and the Trossachs 
National Park 
Stuart Chalmers, Forestry Commission Scotland 
Elaine Garman, NHS Highland 
George Harper, Argyll and Bute Council 
Gordon Donaldson, Forestry Commission Scotland 
Lesley McInnes, West Highland Housing Association 
Donald MacVicar, Argyll and Bute Council 
Douglas Hendry, Argyll and Bute Council 
Andrew Law, Argyll and Bute Council 
Jacqui MacLeod, Crofters Commission 
Shirley MacLeod, Argyll and Bute Council 
Carl Olivarius, Argyll and Bute Council 

Hugh Donaldson, Initiative at the Edge 
Paula Darnton-Smith, Deborah Bryce, Chris Nisbet, 
Local Development Officers, Initiative at the Edge 
Joan Inglis, Visit Scotland 
Alan MacDougall, Fyne Homes 
John Ironside, Strathclyde Fire and Rescue 
Mitchell Roger, Strathclyde Police 
David McGregor, Scottish Enterprise 
Aileen Edwards, Scottish Enterprise 
Alasdair Oatts, Argyll and Bute Care and Repair 
Peter Minshall, Argyll CVS 
Jim Frame, SEPA 
Caroline Jones, Scottish Water 
Sandy Taylor, Argyll and Bute Council 

1. WELCOME
In the absence of the Chair - Councillor Allan Macaskill, the Vice-Chair – Councillor Robin Banks took the 
chair and welcomed everyone to the meeting. Robin welcomed Eileen Wilson, in particular, who had been 
appointed as Community Planning Manager with effect from 24th July 2006. 

2. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 3RD MARCH 2006
The Minutes of the meeting held on 3rd March 2006 were accepted as an accurate record.  

3. MATTERS ARISING
James McLellan gave an update on a number of items from the previous minutes. 

4. MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE UPDATE
Andrew Campbell provided a verbal update on the Management Committee meeting held on 28th June 2006 
and details of all matters would be available in the minutes held on the Council’s website. 

The main item of interest was the Youth Participation Conference which Andrew Campbell had attended.  He 
had given an assurance that it was important that young people’s views would be heard. Anne Clark advised 
that the Health and Wellbeing Group in particular will be helping young people and despite the sparse area of 
Argyll and Bute there are good community links.  It was felt that this was mostly working well. 

Brian Barker confirmed meetings of the Bute and Cowal Pilot would take place at the end of July to 
streamline more effective engagement and proposals would be considered on 4th August. 

5. SHARED VISION – LEADING RURAL AREA 
Brian Barker spoke to his report on Shared Vision – Leading Rural Area, copies having previously been 
circulated.  The positives had been commented on but more detail was required on Best Value by the 
Accounts Commission.  The Management Committee had discussed the draft vision and comments had 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



2

been incorporated into the circulated version as the basis for future work on a revised community plan.  The 
Community Planning Action Plan would be reviewed by the new Community Planning Manager. The Council 
is currently debating actions against the draft Council Strategic Objectives detailed in Brian’s report and the 
Council will continue its process of using the vision as the basis of a revised Corporate Plan to be agreed in 
August.

6. COMMUNITY PLANNING ISSUES 

(a) UPDATE ON CPP PRIORITIES (THEME GROUP LEADERS) 

Health and Wellbeing Theme Group 1
The Partnership noted the report on the activities of the Health and Wellbeing Group, copies of which 
had previously been circulated.  It was also noted that Elaine Garman had taken over from Josephine 
Stojak as chair of the Theme Group. 

Argyll and the Islands Local Economic Forum
The report on the activities of the Argyll and the Islands Local Economic Forum, copies having 
previously been circulated, was noted.  Having regard to activities involving population growth and 
maintenance mentioned in the report, James McLellan made reference to the recent completion of the 
Aqualibrium leisure development/conference facility in Campbeltown which was an encouraging 
illustration of partnership working towards regenerating the community.  

Dunbartonshire Economic Forum
There was no update from Dunbartonshire Economic Forum 

Sustaining and Developing our Communities, Culture and Environment Theme Group 3
The Partnership noted a report on the activities of the Sustaining and Developing our Communities, 
Culture and Environment Group, copies of which had previously been circulated.  It was noted that the 
Management Committee had agreed in principle to a proposal to change the existing name and role of 
the Group and that Donald MacVicar report back to the Committee in October when he, Brian Barker, 
Elaine Wilson and David Dowie had looked at this in detail.  The Partnership discussed the 
requirement when reviewing the focus of the Group to retain coverage over all priorities of the Group, 
not only focussing on Housing and Communities. 

(b) INITIATIVE AT THE EDGE 
The Partnership noted the summary report from the three islands of Colonsay, Coll and Jura, copies 
having previously been circulated. 

7. 10TH CITIZENS’ PANEL   
Jim Johnstone, IBP Strategy and Research, provided a presentation on Accessing Services within Argyll and 
Bute and results of the 10th Citizens’ Panel questionnaire, copies of the presentation to be circulated to the 
Partnership following the meeting.  This provided percentage figures for the key issues of Access to 
Services, Satisfaction with Public Services, Communication and Community Safety.  Jim explained the rating 
and scoring for each section.  Further explanation was sought by the Partnership on various topics and it was 
agreed that Jim would look further at analysis and comparisons and that a summary report would be 
circulated, when available. 

8. ARGYLL AND BUTE CHOOSE LIFE INITIATIVE
The Partnership noted the report for the period April 2003 – 2006 of the Argyll and Bute Choose Life Initiative 
presented by the Health and Wellbeing Theme Group 1, copies having previously been circulated.  The 
report would now be forwarded to the Scottish Executive.  James McLellan asked that measurement of 
figures of those affected by conditions mentioned in the report be provided to the Partnership. 

9. SCOTTISH WATER INVESTMENT PLAN FOR WATER AND SEWERAGE 
Robin Banks welcomed Mike Firth and Craig Jackson of Scottish Water to their first meeting of the 
Partnership. 

There had previously been circulated to the Partnership the Argyll and Bute Council report on the current 
situation with Scottish Water and development capacities within Argyll and Bute – concluding that in 
response to growing concern over water development constraints facing many areas of Argyll and Bute the 
Council had undertaken a number of actions to clarify information and seek solutions to overcome 
development constraints, resulting in good progress being made, with many areas having sufficient capacity 
to meet the realistic needs of the Finalised Local Plan.  There had also been previously circulated 
Programme Update on quality and standards III investment by Scottish Water and letter dated 4th July 2006 
from Initiative at the Edge calling for further and continued dialogue to raise the profile of the marginal 

Page 2



3

communities.  There was also provided to the meeting letter dated 7th July 2006 from Argyll and Bute 
Councillor Ian Gillies expressing concerns on the lack of new connections, particularly on the islands of Coll 
and Tiree and underlining the fact that a lack of new connections was severely hindering any development in 
both of these fragile islands. 

Mike Firth spoke on the programme update and confirmed that Scottish Water were refocusing priorities 
since the report issued in December. Organisations were concerned at lack of their involvement in 
discussions and it was confirmed that issues should be raised through the Council’s Local Plan consultation 
procedure.  Following various questions and answers on issues arising from the above, and on request for 
action plan details, it was agreed that Scottish Water would provide a presentation to the Partnership at their 
next meeting to be held on 10th November 2006. 

10. FUTURE OF PUBLIC SERVICES 

(a) Transforming Public Services
The Partnership noted that the Scottish Executive website for accessing the consultation paper on 
Transforming Public Services can be found at  
http://search.scotland.gov.uk/search/pages/search/basic.asp?QuerySubmit=true&Paging=true&Page=1&
QueryText=Transform+Public+Services

The Chair of the Partnership had received an invitation from the Scottish Executive to one of their 
dialogue events for the next phase of public services reform, scheduled to run from July through to 
September at different locations across Scotland.  When specific dates and locations were obtained from 
the Scottish Executive, these would be forwarded to Andrew Campbell who, it was agreed, would attend. 

(b) Integrated Service Delivery and Governance Project
There had previously been circulated update on Integrated Service Delivery and Governance Project 2nd

Round Workshop. Brian Barker advised that there had been positive feedback from the Scottish 
Executive when the Council had indicated a preference for integrated services with the public sector and 
local organisations such as NHS Highland, SNH, AIE, Argyll College in discussions on working more 
closely.   

(c) Shared Services
It was noted that the Scottish Executive website for accessing the consultation paper on Shared Services 
can be found at  
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2006/05/11102023/0. The consultation paper sets out the 
Scottish Executive's proposals for a national strategy for shared services covering all parts of the 
Scottish public sector. 

(d) Customer Contact Centre
  Individual partners noted the Council progress report on the development of a Customer Contact Centre, 

copies having previously been circulated, and it was agreed that the Council would bring reports back 
periodically to the Partnership. There was a need to have local consultation and it was noted that the 
Management Committee had agreed that Brian Barker contact Stephen Whiston, NHS, and Murdina 
Macdonald, AIE, to ask if they would be willing to represent the Partnership on the Project Board.  It was 
noted that discussions were ongoing regarding office accommodation. 

11. AUDIT SCOTLAND REPORT ON COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIPS 
It was noted that Audit Scotland’s Report on Community Planning Partnerships, setting out the effectiveness 
of partnerships, could be viewed at 
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/publications/pubs2006.htm

12. ANY OTHER COMPETENT BUSINESS 
NHS Scotland Resource Allocation
Brian Barker advised regarding NHS Scotland Resource Allocation Committee consultation on review of NHS 
funding and the criteria for distribution of funds to Health Boards.  Concern was expressed that Argyll and 
Bute could be disadvantaged by use of certain criteria, for example, road mileage per head of population and 
it was felt we might wish to challenge proposals so that there would be more benefit for Argyll and Bute.  
Partners were invited to respond either to the Council or direct to the NHS website www.nrac.scot.nhs.uk.
The closing date for responses is 29th September 2006. 

13. DATE OF NEXT MEETING:  FRIDAY, 10th NOVEMBER 2006 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

Argyll & Bute CPP 
   10 November 2006 

      
ARGYLL AND BUTE COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP  
HEALTH AND WELL BEING THEME GROUP UPDATE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. Background  
 
The Joint Health Improvement Plan (JHIP) for 2006-09 contains a strategic section and 
seven local action plans developed by the local public health networks. Each plan links 
into the strategic actions, and builds local pieces of work around the six health and well 
being priorities, which are: 
 
1. Improving Partnership Working on Health and Well Being 
2. Reducing the Negative Impact of Alcohol Misuse 
3. Reducing the Incidence of Coronary Heart Disease (CHD), Stroke and Cancer 
4. Improving Mental Health and Well Being 
5. Helping Communities to Feel Safer 
6. Reducing Health Inequalities through the Development of Social Care and Health Care 

Services 
 
From 2005 the Health and Wellbeing Theme Group (HWTG) has taken responsibility for 
allocating that part of the Health Improvement Fund (HIF) devolved from the NHS to the 
Community Planning Partnership. There are detailed criteria for application of funding from 
the HIF, including the need for projects to be involved with the public health networks, part 
of JHIP plans (strategic or local), information about expected health outcomes, 
sustainability of projects and also monitoring and evaluation mechanisms. The group has 
allocated approximately £78,000 of HIF funding this year towards implementing 
partnership health improvement work. Most of that money has now been allocated to 
projects that are ongoing in the localities. All are approved by the local public health 
network lead prior to submission to the HWTG. Allocations this year have taken into 
account the population size of the locality. However this has not been strictly adhered to 
as last year not all areas put forward ideas for funding. The intention is that during this 
year we reach a reasonably equitable split over the two years.  
 
2. Progress against JHIP actions 
 
a) Partnership working 
The Group regards this as a crucial priority. Long term sustainability of action on the 
current and future health objectives is considered to be affected by the degree of the 
success of this priority. The local public health networks are at varying degrees of 
development with some clearly cohesive and generating a great deal of health activity 
while others require support to establish a shared vision across all the partners. This does 
not mean that such areas have necessarily a low number of activities. However for there 
to be a sufficient ‘dose’ on any particular topic there does have to be a pulling together to 
concentrate agreed activities.  

 
Argyll and Bute Community Planning Partnership is asked to: 

• Note the health improvement activity undertaken by the community planning 
partners 

Agenda Item 5aPage 5



2 

It is also recognised that we need to capture the health improvement activities that 
community planning partners have been working on in the past months through an audit. 
We aim to complete this work by April 2007. 
 
b) Alcohol 
The HWTG assisted in the process of producing an updated Alcohol and Drug Action Plan 
for Argyll and Bute, with a strong emphasis on prevention and education, and in the format 
of the JHIP i.e. strategic actions linked to local action plans. This should help focus work 
towards the prevention agenda, and has helped partnership working across the area by 
staff involved in service delivery and public health. Improved links have been developed 
between ADAT and HWTG. 
 
c) CHD, stroke and cancer 
A good range of local activity is directed to this priority. However we need to make the 
links with existing strategies and ensure improved co-ordination through local public health 
networks to make best use of the resources available to us.  
 
d) Mental health and wellbeing 
Choose Life, the national initiative aimed at reducing suicide and self harm continues to 
operate well in Argyll and Bute. Their work centres on training, awareness raising, 
information, co-ordination of efforts in early prevention and interventions as well as 
supporting self-help groups throughout the area. 
 
Within this priority the HWTG is also committed to reducing social isolation. Some but not 
all the local plans have directed their attention to this. Within the strategic plan we are 
keen to develop this priority and as an immediate task we are engaging with those taking 
forward the Transport Strategy in the Council and the CHP.  
 
e) Communities feel safer 
Key activities under this priority are DRIVESafe, community safety and domestic abuse. 
DRIVESafe continues to raise awareness of safe driving practice. Using crash data it has 
identified the main causes of crashes in Argyll and Bute and has adopted the ‘RU2close’ 
logo for this year’s logo.  
 
f) Inequalities 
Local plans reflect the range of initiatives being implemented through the development of 
social care and health care services to reduce health inequalities.  At a strategic level the 
HWTG has recognised that it needs to improve its use of data sources to identify areas of 
greatest need. This will be done through the relevant statutory agencies but will generate a 
good level of health intelligence within the Group itself that can be used to its best 
advantage.  
 
3. Conclusion 
The Group has developed its way of working over the past year. Likewise the local public 
health networks have continued to develop. Through such developments it is considered 
that partnership working has improved whilst recognising that we need to support some 
areas to help realise this. Good progress has been made in the other five priority areas 
with plenty evidence of local activity in public health networks and initiatives of all kinds 
coming forward with ideas to improve Argyll and Bute’s health. More attention needs to be 
directed to action on alcohol at a local level and this will be taken forward in liaison with 
those promoting the Drug and Alcohol Action Plan. 
 
Elaine C Garman 
Chair – Health and Wellbeing Theme Group 
30 October 2006 

Page 6



Agenda Item 5aii 
 

Argyll and the Island Local Economic Forum (LEF) Meeting Report to Argyll and Bute 
Community Planning Partnership 20th September 2006 

 
This was the first of the combined LEF and Argyll & 
the Islands Enterprise Board meetings. There will 
be five each year. 
 
Ken Abernethy reported on the Economic Activity in 
the area and then discussed recent measurements, 
issues included: 
 
Aquaculture – Animal rights activists released 
young halibut by cutting nets.  As margins are so 
low the industry cannot bear the additional costs of 
effective security.  There is a merger proposed 
between Panfish and Marine Harvest which could 
impact on some local sides. 
Oban – should be a centre for economic growth and 
efforts to ameliorate the infrastructure constraints 
of Scottish Water and traffic are being addressed.  
The new SW Chair and their realigned budget 
should begin to have effect. 
SAMS – AIE is working with the organisation to help 
it realise its full potential and to maximise the 
benefit to the Highland and Scottish economy. 
Marine National Park - Still under consideration, 
however there are concerns surrounding the 
planning and financial issues that accompany the 
designation.  The consultation will be run by the 
Scottish Executive.  Safeguards for the (shellfish)  
fishing industry will be required if fishing is 
included. 
Irish Ferry - Two companies may be invited to 
tender for the ferry in the near future.  It might 
now be possible to access the ‘Intereg’ EU fund for 
marketing to link with the west coast of Scotland. 
Mull Pool –a venture between the council and a 
hotel to build a new pool on Mull was established 
some years ago. Many obstacles have been 
overcome and the project will now be going ahead, 
and will start soon as there is European money in 
the project with expenditure deadlines. 
Vestas – Nacelle production at Campbeltown, an 
assembly of imported parts, will probably cease in 
a few months.  Tower manufacture, with a now 
mandatory higher local content, will continue 
providing there is a steady flow of UK orders for 
wind turbines.  Transport is critical to the 
continued viability of the Campbeltown factory, 
particularly the three ‘pinch’ points on the A83 
which hinder the shipment of towers (canal bridge 
at Ardrishaig, road bridge at Inveraray and rail 
bridge between Arrochar & Tarbet).  Although 
Vestas have unique transport requirements, we are 
not aware of other economic opportunities that are 
missed because the Argyll road infrastructure is 
below average. 

Argyll Air Services - Linking Oban Coll Colonsay 
and Glasgow is meeting the construction timetable 
and the opportunities then available for both the 
economy and health will be tremendous. 
 
Argyll Schools NPDO – Are mostly now well ahead 
with schools being built and pupils moved in. 
Careers Scotland Lochgilphead - have joined staff 
at AIE in Kilmory as part of the integration being 
effected throughout the Highlands & Islands 
Enterprise. This location will be convenient for the 
new school in Lochgilphead. 
Machrihanish Air Base may be sold to a private 
developer which should enable more commercial 
development on the site, including a new golf 
course which is still awaiting final tranches of 
funding. 
The Kintyre Way - A long distance walk between 
Tarbert and Southend, was opened on 12th August 
2006.  This is a partnership project using funds 
from AIE and work from FC & A&B Council. 
Sailing - Initiatives in North Ayrshire have resulted 
in moorings in Brodick and there may be pontoons 
in Lochranza. 
Garrison House - On Cumbrae incorporating 
offices, doctor and library is nearing completion. 
ESIN Island Exchange Conference - Will be held on 
Islay in November.  This is the final phase of the 
project and the conference will focus on the 
project report as part of the workshops. 
 
Measurement – Reports on the economic 
development activities in the LEF area, a focused 
piece of work commissioned by the group was 
reviewed.  Business Starts are seasonal and have 
declined as unemployment is still quite low in many 
areas of Argyll, despite recent increases.  The 
highest HIE region for unemployment is Dunoon and 
Rothesay where the rate is only 3.8%.  The poor 
quality of available staff is such that it is hindering 
economic development in both existing and 
potential businesses. Population of Argyll & Bute 
has declined, based on mid-year figures, which 
includes a loss of 200 Armed Forces staff which 
probably indicates a stable population overall.  
HIE’s ambitions for the whole of the highlands and 
islands is to grow the population to 500,000 by 
2020. Argyll’s share of this growth is 20,000 which 
in turn means 10,000 new homes will need to be 
constructed. While all exchanges are Broadband 
enabled, the focus now needs to be moved to 
increasing business take-up of the capability. 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Annual Report

For

Argyll and Bute Community Planning Partnership. 

In Respect of the Islands of Jura, Coll and Colonsay 

C.P.P. Meeting held in Council Chambers

Kilmory

On 10th November 2006. 

Initiative at the Edge is a partnership programme supported by The Scottish Executive, Highlands & Islands 

Enterprise Network, Communities Scotland, The Crofters Commission, Highland Council, Shetland Islands 

Council, Orkney Islands Council, Comhairle nan Eilan Siar & Argyll & Bute Council. Scottish Natural Heritage 

and the Health Boards of Highland & Argyll, ,Orkney,Shetland & The Western Isles. 

Agenda Item 5bPage 9



INITIATIVE AT THE EDGE 
I O M A I R T  A I G  A N  O I R  

3 Island Report -- Contents 

1. Introduction & overview of progress   page   2. 

2. Jura report        pages  3 – 7. 

3. Coll report        pages  8 – 14. 

4. ODS report --executive summary re Coll & Tiree  

housing market study published Aug 2005.  pages  15 - 20 

5. Colonsay report not available.    Page   21. 

Page 10



Introduction 

The 3 island communities have had a mixed year in terms of progress.

It is interesting to note that all have made progress.

Jura :- remains very active with joint island working between IATE , the 

community council, Jura Development Trust and other local bodies.  

Progress has beeen made with the Scottish executive backed RSPA 

project , the development plan has been reviewed and several strands of 

the plan expanded to take account of local consultation.

Of particular note was the submission of a mini masterplan to various 

funding bodies but in particular to the BIG Lottery fund. This has been 

enthusiastically accepted and the funders seem genuinely interested in 

following up this type of approach.  

Coll :- lost the services of the LDO in July and have worked away at 

trying to keep the main project list in everyones mind. The volunteers 

have all been busy over the summer with their own business activity and 

efforts are now being made at local partnership level to re start public 

meetings and agree project priorities.  

The housing needs issues are a main priority and the Exec Summary of 

the joint Tiree & Coll survey is attached here. 

Colonsay :-  The island has moved on from IATE designation. Very little 

feedback has been possible as the LDO has also started a small business 

and is busy with that. The Community Land Unit has funded 3 months of 

activity in order to finalise the crofting project and tie up any other 

loose ends.

Partnership assistance with these projects would be very much 

appreciated.

2

Page 11



Jura Report – Concerns and Successes – October 2006 

Concerns

The need to prioritise LDO work when everything is ’important’, multi levels of 

interests and working alone. 

Attracting funding for LDO after IaaO exit period expires.. 

Accessibility issues on islands for meetings. Off island meetings absorb working 

days and thus workload.  

Projects still undergoing when initial three year period funding runs out that still 

require monitoring and organising. 

Success leads to more LDO workload, which in turn leads to less attention to 

details.

Jura Projects - Successes 

Development plan on schedule. 

Top priority projects are; 

Passenger Ferry – Scheduled for April 2007. Rural Community Transport 

Initiative application form submitted 1st September. Working with AIE and 

A&BC. Business plan developed with the help from Smart Successful Solutions. 

Red Bay demonstration trips out into the open waters carried out on 9th August. 

Survey completed by passengers for comfort, safety and usability. Very positive 

feedback.

Village Car Park & Recreational Area – Working with A&BC to obtain drawings 

and costs for construction. Application to be sent to the Big Lottery Fund to 

work project in with the Antlers Tearoom Project as part of the Jura

Regeneration Plan*.

Successful involvement with the Jura Development Trust, Jura Community 

Business and Jura Community Council, and other Community run groups, on 

different projects within the island giving aid with IatE status where possible.  

*Jura Regeneration Plan  

There are seven projects within the plan that are based in the island’s main 

settlement of Craighouse. They are:- 

1. Car park, with a recreation area, to the North of the hall (Initiative at the 
Edge)

2. Renovated and extended village hall (Isle of Jura Village Hall Committee)

3. New Antlers building to include a bunkhouse, tea room and interpretation 

centre. (Jura Development Trust)
4. New moorings and landing pontoon (Jura Development Trust)
5. Passenger ferry with landing facilities (Initiative at the Edge)
6. Workshops (Jura Community Business Ltd)
7. Bio-fuel boiler (Jura Development Trust)

3

Page 12



Following discussions between the groups responsible for these individual projects it 

was agreed to create a Regeneration Plan for the centre of Craighouse. This action 

was taken to ensure that there was no duplication between projects, that where it 

was possible to share facilities we did so and to ensure that each individual group 

knew what the other groups were doing. Overall it would ensure that the 

redevelopment of the centre of Craighouse went ahead in a co-ordinated and planned 

manner for the benefit of the community at large. 

This regeneration plan has been accepted by Argyll & Bute Council’s Planning Service 

dept and they have confirmed that all the projects would be supported by the Area 

for Action designation. We continue to develop this plan in conjunction with our 

partners in the IatE Area Steering Group and it is our desire that it is formally 

agreed by them in the coming months. 

Listed below are the projects which are currently in our IatE Development Plan 

for the regeneration of the centre of Craighouse.

1. Car Park

Project sponsor: Local IatE Committee. 

There is no car park in the centre of Craighouse at present. Anyone visiting the 

shop, hall or the Antlers Interpretation Centre has to park on the narrow road which 

runs through this area. This leads to vehicle congestion and, more worryingly, is 

dangerous for pedestrians. 

Our plan is to create a car park to the North of the Village Hall providing some 20 

spaces including 1 for a disabled driver together with a small recreation area with 

benches etc. This will alleviate the current problems and provide spare capacity to 

meet the needs generated by other projects within our plan.  

2. Antlers project   Project Sponsor: Isle of Jura Development Trust 

The existing Antlers, together with some additional land, was purchased by the 

community in 2004. It is planned to replace the current building with a new one 

which makes better use of the site and provides more & better facilities for both 

residents and visitors. It will include a gift shop / tea room with up to 24 covers, an 

Interpretation Centre providing a range of displays to better inform visitors about 

what to see and do whilst they are on Jura and a bunkhouse to provide affordable 

overnight accommodation for the many hikers and cyclists who visit the island. When 

it is completed it will create 2 new jobs on the island. A new waste management 

system will be required to meet current legislation. It is possible that this could be 

used in whole or in part by the renovated Village Hall.  

A business case is being finalised for this sustainable, community development and an 

architectural and engineering feasibility study will be completed shortly. A 

Management Consultant has completed an Outline Proposal (Reference: 

SVP/1/010219903) for the Big Lottery Fund. 

3. Village Hall   Project Sponsor: Isle of Jura Village Hall 

Committee

4

Page 13



Our hall was built in the 1920s and moved to its present location in the 1940s, this 

hall is owned by the Community and run by an organising committee. Although it has 

been well maintained over the years it is in need of extensive modernisation and 

enlargement to meet the needs of Jura in the 21st century. Through a survey by the 

Initiative on the Edge Committee, the Community of Jura expressed that the Jura 

Hall needed a total refurbishment and remodelling to enable more sporting and 

leisure activities to happen, allowing all the opportunity to use the space to its full 

capacity.  The Hall is the only building which our Community can use to come 

together as a whole and is used for a huge variety of events ranging from clubs, 

sport, leisure activities, exhibitions, live performances, dances and public meetings.  

An engineering architect has examined the building and determined that it is 

structurally sound. It is planned to completely renovate it and build an extension to 

provide additional facilities including the Jura Service Point. 

The Service Point  facility is part of the 3 Islands Initiative sponsored by Argyll & 

Bute Council (ABC), Argyll & Islands Enterprise (AIE), the National Health Service 

and Scottish Executive which provides all on Jura with the facilities to use  

computers, video conferencing, have internet access, photocopying and printing. This 

Service Point is housed at the moment in a building belonging to Argyll and Bute 

Council Education Department, as a house for the Teacher for our Primary School. 

Our present Teacher of long standing, owns his own home, hence the vacant 

Education Department building but this will change in the near future as the Teacher 

will be retiring. Then the Education Department building will be lost and along with it 

the vital services of the Service Point. Land around the Hall has been donated to us 

to provide space for this building to be integrated into the Hall site, allowing Jura 

the opportunities that this service provides. Plans are being prepared now for 

approval by the community.

4. Additional moorings and pontoons      Project Sponsor: Isle of Jura 

Development Trust 

At present there are 8 mooring buoys in Small Isles Bay owned by ABC. It is 

difficult for visiting yachtsmen to get ashore. 

To meet the increasing demand for secure moorings it is planned to add an additional 

eight buoys. The project also includes signage and a landing pontoon with “bridge” to 

the existing stone pier which will make access to Craighouse itself much easier and 

safer. It is anticipated that these works will increase the number of yachts and 

motor boats staying overnight in Small Isles Bay. We are confident that this will 

significantly increase the number of people coming ashore to the benefit of the 

shop, hotel, distillery and the new Antlers development. Ongoing operations & 

management of all the moorings and pontoons will be become the responsibility of 

the Jura Development Trust. Collection of fees and light maintenance will create a 

part time job. Sea bed survey is complete. JDT are working on management plan. 

Work to commence Sept/Oct. 

5. Scheduled Passenger ferry service Project Sponsor: Local IatE Committee 

There is no scheduled direct ferry service to Jura from the mainland. In response to 

the wishes of the community, a study into a direct link was recently completed by 

Steer Davies Gleave, Transportation consultants. After lengthy discussion and 

5

Page 14



consultation the proposed option of a short sea vehicle ferry link from Lagg on Jura 

to Keillmore on the mainland was rejected by the community. 

However, as part of the same study, a scheduled passenger ferry service operating 

from Craighouse to Crinan on the mainland was proposed. This was approved by the 

community. AIE have assisted with the preparation of a business case in consultation 

with Argyll & Bute Council as the potential service provider. If, as seems likely at 

this stage, this can operate sustainably with little or no subsidy, then a proposal will 

be made to establish a 3 year pilot service. This would operate from Easter to the 

end of September.  

The landing point at Craighouse will be the pontoons to be provided by the Mooring 

and Pontoons project with some modification. As well as being a significant benefit 

to residents of Jura, if marketed effectively, this will increase visitors to the island 

which will be a boost to the island’s economy. 

6. Workshops    Project Sponsor: Jura Community Business 

Ltd

There is a need to create new businesses on Jura and the construction of 2 or 3 

workshops is seen as key to this. The site of first choice for these is adjacent to 

the community owned and run petrol station which has additional land that is well 

suited to this type of development. Jura Community Business are looking into the 

development process. 

7. Bio fuel Renewable Energy Project Sponsor: Isle of Jura Development Trust 

This community project is examining the feasibility of installing a wood chip boiler on 

the distillery site to provide heat for distilling operations and to the hotel. Timber 

would be harvested from existing plantations of coniferous trees and processed into 

wood chip. An on-island use for timber would be very attractive to the forestry 

owners as it is barely cost effective to ship it off the island. 

The benefits to the environment are considerable in that this type of operation is 

carbon neutral and it would reduce the consumption of oil significantly. It is planned 

that the boiler would be owned by the community and any income from it would be 

used for the benefit of the Jura. The processing of timber into wood chip has the 

potential for establishing a new business on the island. 

This project, which is being assisted and funded by Alienergy and Highlands and 

Islands Community Energy Company, is in its early stages but it is conceivable that 

some of the hot water generated could be used to heat both the Antlers and the 

Village Hall. Finalising feasibility study. 

New projects are being brought forward by community members. 

Other successful projects undertaken and underway:

- Beach cleans – raising money for local organisations such as Playground 

Association and Badminton Club. 

- Training courses (Knotweed spraying course carried out in June) 

- Jura roads man position now filled 

6

Page 15



- Further four houses being built on Care Centre site for 2007/08 by West 

Highland Housing Association 

- Expensive ferry fares – bid for Rural Priority Service Area monies now in place 

to aid with a short term discount for residents. 

- Roads and passing places to be completed by October. 20 passing places to be 

upgraded. Local Contractor secured to carry out work. 

Strong links forged with agencies through IatE. 

Valuable experience gained from involvement in any projects undertaken. 

7

Page 16



Coll Report – October 2006. 

As mentioned in the introduction Coll has lost the services of the development 

officer. The LDO left for family reasons and points up the problems associated 

with the lack of year round affordable housing to rent.  

The following grid was completed in July 2006 following public consultation and 

the holding of several workshops on the island. A detailed map is available which 

identifies project locations but that is not attached to this report. 

It is proving difficult to secure the services of another LDO and the local 

development group are liasing with AIE officers in order to keep on top of the 

admin procedures for the company and to make what whatever progress is 

possible.

8

Page 17



9

Page 18



10

Page 19



11

Page 20



12

Page 21



13

Page 22



14

Page 23



Coll and Tiree 
Housing Market Study 

Final Report  
Executive Summary 

August 2005 

ODS in partnership with Housing Plus 

2 Myrtle Park 

Glasgow

G42 8UQ 

Tel: 0141 424 3765 

Fax: 0141 423 9997 

15

Page 24



Executive Summary 

1. Introduction and Background to the Study

Organisational Development and Support (ODS) and Housing Plus were commissioned in 
September 2004 by Argyll and Bute Council to undertake housing market studies of Lorn and 
the Inner Isles; Mull and Iona; and Coll and Tiree. 

This report relates to research findings and recommendations for the islands of Coll and Tiree.  
Separate research reports have been prepared for Lorn and the Inner Isles and Mull and Iona, 
together with a combined report for all three housing market areas. 

2. Overview of the Study Area

The 2001 Census recorded a total of 164 inhabitants on Coll and 770 on Tiree.  Scarinish is the 
main town on Tiree, with the rest of the population spread throughout a number of villages and 
townships.  The smaller population of Coll is centred around the village of Arinagour. 

Both islands are linked to the mainland by a ferry service from Oban, in addition to which there 
are daily flights to Tiree from Glasgow Airport. 

The fragile economies of Coll and Tiree are dependent to varying extents on agriculture, fishing 
and tourism.  However, Tiree has a sizeable service sector, providing an increasing number of 
employment opportunities. 

3. Social and Economic Context 

Population and Households 

Between 1991 and 2001 the population of Coll and Tiree remained relatively stable.  Population 
projections prepared by Argyll and Bute Council for Mull and Iona and Coll and Tiree estimate a small 
reduction in the population for the period to 2015; however it is anticipated that the proportion of the 
population over pensionable age will continue to increase. 

Between 1991 and 2001 there was a nine per cent increase in the number of households in the Coll and 
Tiree HMA.  The Council’s projections anticipate further household growth in the period to 2015 but at 
a somewhat slower rate. 

The ability of the populations of Coll and Tiree to remain stable, and the extent of household growth, 
will very much depend on the future availability and affordability of housing for local people and 
incoming workers, together with an adequate range of support services to meet the requirements of an 
ageing population 

The Economy 

In 2001 the level of economic activity was higher than the Argyll and Bute average on Coll but 
somewhat lower on Tiree.  There was a lower than average incidence of full-time employment on both 
islands but considerably higher levels of self employment. 

The traditional industries of agriculture and fishing continue to contribute to the economies of both 
islands, with tourism having an increasingly important role.  The service sector has increased in recent 
years and has assisted economic growth, particularly on Tiree.  A shortage of skills has been identified 
on Tiree, in relation to professional services and time served tradespeople. 

16

Page 25



Earned incomes on Coll and Tiree are lower than the national average, with almost one third of people 
in employment on Coll, and almost two-thirds on Tiree, earning less than £10,000 a year.  Coll and 
Tiree have been identified as one of the most deprived areas in Argyll and Bute in terms of multiple 
deprivation and income deprivation. 

The shortage of affordable housing for rent and owner occupation, and rising house prices, are 
considered to be hampering economic growth, especially on Tiree, with the result that difficulties are 
encountered by both local and incoming workers in accessing suitable accommodation. 

It is hoped that Coll’s recent designation as an ‘Initiative at the Edge’ project will bring economic and 
social benefits to the Island.  The Tiree Development Partnership is seeking to achieve a sustainable 
community and has placed an emphasis on ensuring a sufficient supply of housing to meet the 
requirements of local people and to attract people who can bring much-needed skills to the Island. 

4. Existing Housing Supply 

Social Rented Sector 

In 2001 social rented housing accounted for 13 per cent of all effective housing stock in the Coll and 
Tiree HMA, which is significantly lower than the Argyll and Bute average of 23 per cent. 

There are 12 council houses on Coll and 27 on Tiree.  Right to Buy sales have reduced council housing 
provision by 29 per cent on Coll and 44 per cent on Tiree.  The Council is currently pursuing the option 
of whole stock transfer to Argyll Community Housing Association. 

Trust Housing Association has been the only RSL in the Coll and Tiree HMA, owning six amenity 
houses for older people on Coll.  However, West Highland Housing Association will shortly be 
providing two houses for general needs on Tiree.  In addition, the Hebridean Trust owns 12 houses 
which are let at affordable rents on the basis of housing need.  

Private Sector 

Owner occupation accounts for approximately two-thirds of all effective housing stock on Coll 
and Tiree.  Over the last two years house sales activity has accelerated and house prices have 
increased on both islands. 
Consultations indicated that house prices have risen significantly over the last two years, with 
this upward trend continuing as a result of competing demands from local people, incoming 
workers and people wishing to move to the Island for ‘lifestyle’ reasons or to retire, adding 
pressure to the limited number of properties coming on to the market. 
Between 1997 and 2004, less than one third of houses sales were to buyers local to Coll or Tiree, 
with over half of all sales to people from outwith the Argyll and Bute area. 
Tiree is unique in that most of the land is under crofting tenure.  Recent research and the 
Crofters Commission have both suggested that current legislation in relation to crofting provides 
opportunities for land to be made available and affordable housing developed, with funding 
assistance through the CHGS. 
The Crofters Commission has prepared a draft housing policy which seeks to address the 
shortage of affordable housing throughout the crofting communities. 
Private rented accommodation accounts for 18 per cent of all effective stock in the Coll and 
Tiree HMA, compared to the Argyll and Bute average of 13 per cent.  Feedback from our 
consultations confirmed a shortage of private rented accommodation, with significant 
proportions of households living in winter lets and experiencing difficulties in securing 
alternative accommodation during the summer months. 
The condition of private sector stock varies, but significant numbers of owner occupied 
dwellings are still in an unsatisfactory condition. Information from a recent council survey 
indicates that over 70% of occupied private sector housing is in a poor condition, with levels of 

17

Page 26



BTS failure six times above the Scottish average.  Repair and improvement grants have made 
some inroads in reducing the number of seriously substandard properties. 

Community Care 

Current community care housing provision is mostly for older people, in the form of amenity 
housing on Coll and sheltered housing on Tiree, together with several houses for people with 
physical disabilities or mobility problems on Tiree.  A range of initiatives aimed at improving 
the suitability of housing for people with particular needs include Care and Repair; Housing 
Support Service; aids, adaptations and community alarms; and the recent piloting of assistive 
technology.

Housing Land Supply 

The Council’s draft Local Plan includes a proposed 20 unit housing development on Coll, 25 per 
cent of which should provide affordable housing.  On Tiree a proposed development of up to 30 
units, includes the provision of eight affordable properties with GRO Grant. 

Planners are of the view that land supply for future housing development on both islands does 
not present a problem, provided effective use is made of Rural Opportunity Areas on Coll.  
Future disposal of land for housing will require to be negotiated with Argyll Estates as the major 
landowner on Tiree, the crofting community, particularly on Tiree and with other landowners as 
appropriate.

Planners have emphasised the importance of housing design, particularly on Tiree and wish to 
involve the local community in agreeing local approaches and solutions, and in developing a 
Tiree sustainable housing design guide to complement the forthcoming design guide for the 
wider Argyll and Bute area. 

The provision of further housing development on Tiree may be inhibited by lack of adequate 
water supply.  

5. Housing Need and Demand for Affordable Housing 

Social Rented Sector 

Turnover of social rented housing is relatively low (an average of three houses per annum over 
the last two years). 

There are currently 25 applicants for social rented housing, with the greatest demand from 
couples without children on Coll and from single person applicants on Tiree. 

If Coll and Tiree were designated as a ‘pressured’ area, it is estimated that around three fewer 
properties would be sold under the Right to Buy throughout the whole of the five year 
‘suspension period’. 

From our consultations and resident surveys, we have concluded that the demand expressed by 
housing lists does not provide a true reflection of the housing requirements of the Coll and Tiree 
communities.  It would appear that in many cases applicants do not register a housing 
application as they see little chance in being offered accommodation.  Furthermore, the social 
rented sector is for the most part unable to meet the housing requirements of incoming workers. 

homelessness, resulting from insecure tenancies and winter lets of 
holiday accommodation. 

Although statutory homelessness is not regarded as a significant issue, from our consultations 
there is evidence of hidden 

18

Page 27



The Private Sector 

Demand for owner occupation exceeds the current supply on both Coll and Tiree, which has pushed up prices beyond 
the reach of most local people.  From our residents’ surveys it is estimated that five households on Coll and seven on 
Tiree have left the area due to a lack of suitable housing, a proportion of whom would have wished to purchase a 
house. 

In terms of quantifying demand, an analysis of resident survey findings indicates that 13 households on Coll and 23 on 
Tiree wish to enter owner occupation within the next five years.  Self-build was regarded as a possible option for a 
considerable proportion of potential owner occupiers. 

When private rented accommodation becomes available for let, competition is intense due to the pressure on other 
tenure sectors.  Increasing numbers of households have to rely on winter lets, with a lack of housing options available 
to them during the summer months. 

Community Care 

The increasing number of older person households (especially on Tiree) will place increasing demands on care and 
support services to enable older people to remain living in their own homes.  From an analysis of housing applicants 
and resident survey findings, there is an ongoing but not excessive demand for specialist housing for older people. 

Resident survey findings indicated that 37 households in the Coll and Tiree HMA were living in accommodation 
unsuitable to their requirements.  Of these, 14 stated a requirement for alternative accommodation, in some cases with 
care and support services, and 23 required adaptations to their existing homes. 

Housing Land Supply 

From our consultations it would appear that there is an unmet demand for housing land on both Coll and Tiree. 

Housing Information and Advice 

From our consultations and resident surveys, a need for the improved provision of information and advice was 
identified in respect of affordable housing options, including RHOGs and self-build; repair and improvement grants; 
and information and advice on care and support services for people with community care needs. 

6. Assessing and Addressing the Imbalances Between Housing Supply and Demand 

Assessment of Need and Demand 

Based on our analysis of research findings we have assessed imbalances between housing supply and demand and 
estimate that: 

Coll – Social Rent An additional 10 social rented properties (2 per annum) will be 
required to meet identified need over the next five years. 

Coll – Owner 
Occupation 

Approximately 13 new houses will be required over the next five 
years in the £60-80,000 price range to meet local demand for 
owner occupation. 

Tiree – Social Rent An additional 29 social rented properties (6 per annum) will be 
required to meet identified need over the next five years. 

Tiree – Owner 
Occupation 

Approximately 25 new houses will be required over the next five 
years in the £60-90,000 price range to meet local demand for 
owner occupation, of which eight houses will be provided by a 

Page 28



recently approved GRO-Grant development.   

A further 33 additional dwellings would be required on Tiree if the Development Partnership’s draft target of increasing the 
population by 10 per cent is to be met. 

A Local Partnership Approach 

To ensure the continued stability of the island populations, and assist economic development, it is considered that the 
Tiree Development Partnership and the partnership being formed on Coll should take the lead in identifying local 
housing needs and measures to address them.  Development frameworks for both islands should be prepared taking 
account of planning/design issues and land availability. 

Consideration should be given to an overarching body having responsibility for land assembly, the administration of 
RHOGs and support for the local partnerships.  It is anticipated that it would be a designated Rural Housing Body and 
be able to impose burdens on land disposals ensuring that affordable housing provided with subsidy continued to be 
available to targeted client group

xx

Page 29



Colonsay Report:-

No feedback has been received since the area moved on from partnership 

support.

Work on the island is currently under the auspices of the Community Land Unit 

animateur scheme.

Page 30


